
DPW - COMMITTEE 
Monday, July 19, 2021 - 9:30 AM 

 
 

 
Robin DeLoria, Chairperson 
Archie Depo, Vice-Chairperson 
 
Chairman DeLoria called this DPW Meeting to order at 9:30 am with the following Supervisors in 
attendance: Clayton Barber, Robin DeLoria, Archie Depo, Stephanie DeZalia, Shaun Gillilland, 
Joseph Giordano, Charlie Harrington, Roy Holzer, Ken Hughes, Steve McNally, Noel Merrihew, 
Jay Rand, Tom Scozzafava, Jeff Subra, Ike Tyler, Joe Pete Wilson and Davina Winemiller.  James 
Monty was absent. 

 
Department Heads present:  Jim Dougan, Judy Garrison and Dan Palmer. 
 
Also present:  Alice Halloran and Win Belanger. 
 
News Media: Tim Rowland – Sun Community News. 
 
 
DELORIA:  Let’s call this DPW meeting to order.  Stand for the pledge please.  Mr. Dougan can 
you take the mic and lead us on. 
 
DOUGAN:  Good morning.  Where would you like to start?  Resolutions? 
 
DELORIA: Why don’t we Jim.  Everybody’s got the report, they can review that and ask any 
questions from it. 
 
DOUGAN: My first request is for a budget amendment.  It is for extreme winter recover money.  
Last year during budget time, as you recall New York State had pulled away 20% of our CHIPS 
funding so we assumed they wouldn’t remove any extreme winter recover money forward into this 
year so we originally budgeted zero dollars for extreme winter recovery.  When they passed the 
budget it did have extreme winter recover money for us so this is a budget amendment to bring 
that extreme winter recover money in.  It’s in the amount of $536,896.38. 
 
RESOLUTION AUTHORIZING A BUDGET AMENDMENT IN THE DEPARTMENT OF PUBLIC 
WORKS INCREASING REVENUES AND APPROPRIATIONS IN THE AMOUNT OF 
$536,896.38, NEW YORK STATE EXTREME WINTER RECOVER FUNDING.  Depo, Giordano 
 
DELORIA:  Any questions or discussion on that?  All in favor, opposed – carried. 
 
DOUGAN:  So the next three resolutions, I’m going to be using some of that extreme winter 
recovery money.  The civil term contract that we put out to bid that we discussed before that Reale 
Construction was the successful bidder on, we’re using them in coordination with our own forces 
to haul gravel, buy gravel through our term contracts so we’re making deep repairs to roads in 
some places.  Removing poor subsoils as much as 48” deep in areas where we’ve had repeated 
failures with roads so the first one, is authorizing a contract amendment with Reale Construction 
in the amount not to exceed $55,000.00, for labor and equipment necessary for road 
reconstruction of Tracy Road, located in the Town of Moriah. This is near Newport Pond.  It’s 
about 600 feet of road and we’re going to go about 48” deep removing the existing subsoil.  It’s a 
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section that we just have continued failures and I think it’s just poor material underneath the road 
base. 
 
RESOLUTION AUTHORIZING THE COUNTY CHAIRMAN OR COUNTY MANAGER TO 
EXECUTE A CONTRACT AMENDMENT WITH REALE CONSTRUCTION IN AN AMOUNT 
NOT TO EXCEED $50,000.00, FOR LABOR AND EQUIPMENT NECESSARY FOR ROAD 
RECONSTRUCTION OF A SECTION OF COUNTY ROUTE 6 (TRACY ROAD) LOCATED IN 
THE TOWN OF MORIAH WITH FUNDS TO COME FROM BUDGETED FUNDS.  Scozzafava, 
Depo 
 
DELORIA:  Any questions or discussion on that?  All in favor, opposed – carried. 
 
DOUGAN:  The next one, very similar this is on Hurricane Road, in the Town of Keene.  It’s 
between Jackson Road and O’Toole Lane for a total of almost 1,000 feet of road and we’re going 
to be removing again, close to 48” of material so it would be a resolution for a contract amendment 
with Reale Construction in an amount not to exceed $64,200.00, funds to come from budgeted 
funds and authorizing the County Chair or County Manager to execute that contract. 
 
RESOLUTION AUTHORIZING THE COUNTY CHAIRMAN OR COUNTY MANAGER TO 
EXECUTE A CONTRACT AMENDMENT WITH REALE CONSTRUCTION IN AN AMOUNT 
NOT TO EXCEED $64,200.00, FOR LABOR AND EQUIPMENT NECESSARY FOR ROAD 
RECONSTRUCTION OF A SECTION OF COUNTY ROUTE 13 (HURRICANE ROAD) 
LOCATED IN THE TOWN OF KEENE WITH FUNDS TO COME FROM BUDGETED FUNDS.  
Scozzafava, Winemiller 
 
DELORIA:  Any questions or discussion on that?  All in favor, opposed – carried. 
 
DOUGAN:  The next one is very similar.  This one is on Vineyard Road, County Route 7, in the 
Town of Crown Point again, a contract amendment with Reale Construction in an amount not to 
exceed $17,900.00, with funds to come from budgeted funds and further authorizing the County 
Chair or County Manager to execute it. This one is about 535 feet, it’s only one lane and it’s 
approximately a foot and a half deep. 
 
RESOLUTION AUTHORIZING THE COUNTY CHAIRMAN OR COUNTY MANAGER TO 
EXECUTE A CONTRACT AMENDMENT WITH REALE CONSTRUCTION IN AN AMOUNT 
NOT TO EXCEED $17,900.00, FOR LABOR AND EQUIPMENT NECESSARY FOR ROAD 
RECONSTRUCTION OF A SECTION OF COUNTY ROUTE 7 (VINEYARD ROAD) LOCATED 
IN THE TOWN OF CROWN POINT WITH FUNDS TO COME FROM BUDGETED FUNDS.  
Holzer, McNally 
 
DELORIA:  Any questions or discussion on that?  All in favor, opposed – carried. 
 
DOUGAN:  My fifth request today is for a Federal Aid funded project.  It’s the bridge over here on 
Water Street.  DOT has approved our plans and has sent what is called, supplemental agreement 
#2, which authorizes construction phase.  Those bids are out to bid right now and are due 
tomorrow so this authorizing implementation and funding in the first instance, 100% of the Federal 
aid and State Marchiselli program project and appropriating funds therefor.  I provided the 
breakdown there.  The total project right now is estimated at $2,387,868, 80% of that is coming 
from Federal funding, a little over $1.9 million.  State Marchiselli funding right now is at $50,336.00 
where our local match is $427,238.  I will be requesting State Marchiselli funds for construction 
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phase.  That $50,000 was just for the design phase.  This resolution will further authorize Mr. 
Palmer or Mr. Gillilland to sign supplemental agreement #2. 
 
WINEMILLER:  This is the Town of Elizabethtown? 
 
DOUGAN:  Town of Elizabethtown, yup. 
 
RESOLUTION AUTHORIZING THE IMPLEMENTATION AND FUNDING IN THE FIRST 
INSTANCE 100% OF THE FEDERAL-AID AND STATE “MARCHISELLI” PROGRAM-AID 
ELIGIBLE COSTS OF A TRANSPORTATION FEDERAL-AID PROJECT. (WATER STREET 
OVER THE BRANCH BRIDGE REPLACEMENT PROJECT)  Depo, Barber. 
 
DELORIA:  Jimmy this is a replacement so what’s the, you’re going to close that right off I 
presume? 
 
DOUGAN:  Yes, we’re going to close it right off working with Mr. Merrihew on that and we had 
some residents that wanted to close it permanently but we are going to close it right off and put 
up detour signs to go around. 
 
DELORIA: Okay.  Good.  Any other questions or discussions on that?  All in favor, opposed – 
carried. 
 
DOUGAN: That was my last resolution but I wanted to make you aware of a couple of things that 
I will likely bring to ways and means committee.  As I had just said, the bids for Water Street are 
due tomorrow, assuming that those bids are within our budget and they are approved by DOT 
because will take a review of those I’d like to bring them at Ways & Means to award that project.  
I just wanted to give you a heads up on it. 
 
DELORIA:  What’s the likelihood of that Jim? 
 
DOUGAN:  I think the likelihood is pretty good. We’ve got quite a bit of interest in the project and 
number two is the bridge on Trout Brook Road in the Town of Schroon that we had to close about 
a month ago.  I wanted to give this board a head’s up that we got into more work than we originally 
estimated.  We had estimated the repair to take about two weeks and that it would take about 
eight yards of concrete to fill underneath that bridge where the scour was.  We found the scour to 
be quite a bit more significant and know we’ve got at least twelve yards of material into that, I 
know we also had to add rebar to satisfy DOT and the dewatering became more significant than 
we thought so we were there for four weeks.  I’m still working with the change order, with the 
contractor to get a change order but I will likely have that resolved by ways and means committee 
and we’ll likely bring it then but I just wanted the board to be aware and hear it from me. 
 
DELORIA:  Alright has everyone got a chance to brief through Jim’s report?  Does anyone have 
any questions of Jim?  Jimmy, do you have anything else for us? 
 
DOUGAN: I would just give an update that we do continue to work on the hiker shuttle. We’ve 
continued to work with DEC and DOT.  We’ve offered to do the right of way improvements to get 
the buses off the road to ensure that it happens sooner rather than later. We should have our first 
bus wrapped by the end of this month.  We’re making up signs and schedules so we’re prepared, 
just waiting for DEC and DOT.   
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DELORIA:  Anything to share out of your fairgrounds meeting this morning? 
 
DOUGAN:  Mr. Holzer, perhaps? 
 
HOLZER:  I had a fairgrounds task force meeting this morning.  It was recommended by the 
committee that we raise our existing storage fees at that facility from $12.00 to $14.00 per foot.  
As many of you know that’s our main source of revenue for those grounds so I’d like to make that 
resolution to increase the storage fees to $14.00 a square foot. 
 
RESOLUTION AUTHORIZING TO INCREASE THE STORAGE FEE RATE AT THE ESSEX 
COUNTY FAIRGROUNDS FROM $12.00 TO $14.00 PER SQUARE FOOT.  Holzer, Depo 
 
DELORIA:  Any discussion on that?  All in favor, so moved.  Roy, you had something from the 
floor do you want to bring that up now? 
 
HOLZER:  Yes, sure.  So on your desk I gave you copy of some correspondence I wrote to New 
York State Department of Transportation last year in regarding some mud slides that’s been 
occurring in the Wilmington Notch for quite some time.  You have a picture there that shows how 
dire it is but this has been going on for several years now back in 2020 I was so concerned about 
it that I put them on notice.  My reason for bringing it to you today is I think the situation in serious 
enough that our county needs to go on record expressing our concerns.  Now whether that’s a 
resolution directed from this committee to maybe directing Jim to get an update on where this 
stands for a retaining wall.  Jay can probably talk a little bit about this as well but in this area where 
this mud slide keeps occurring is there are boulders that go right into the highway.  There’s 
absolutely no room to maneuver as far as cars.  It’s in one of the most narrow areas of the notch 
and you can see the response I got from DOT last year but I haven’t heard anything recently and 
there’s a lot of concern in my neck of the woods about this. 
 
DELORIA:  Do you want to take a shot at them before we do a resolution?  Give them a call, 
DOT? 
 
DOUGAN: Yeah. 
 
RAND:  I drove back and forth for twenty years to Whiteface Mountain for work and one day I was 
coming back, just after a pretty heavy rain cars were in the other lane going East, I was going 
West back towards Lake Placid and when around the little brick wall there so I couldn’t really see, 
had no clear vision and when I went around there was a boulder about a foot and a half high, just 
high enough to take my transmission out and cost me about $10,000 in damages so it is a serious 
issue for sure because you never know what you’re going to find there. 
 
HOLZER:  So think about this a little bit more Mr. Chairman.  I think I’ll offer a resolution for us to 
send us to send a resolution to DOT and the Governor’s Office putting them on notice that we 
have grave concerns about this area, the Wilmington Notch. 
 
DELORIA:  And you’ll reference your correspondence to DOT in that resolution?  Is that something 
you are going to draft up? 
 
HOLZER: I’m offering it right now and I can get together – 
 
PALMER:  Yeah, if you can get together with Mr. Manning and give him the details he can have 
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a resolution ready. 
 
RESOLUTION URGING THE NEW YORK STATE DEPARTMENT OF TRANSPORTATION 
AND THE GOVERNOR’S OFFICE TO INSPECT THE ROCKSLIDES ON ROUTE 86, 
(WILMINGTON NOTCH) IN THE TOWN OF WILMINGTON.  Holzer, DeLoria 
 
DELORIA:  That’s moved, I’ll second that.  All in favor, opposed – carried. 
 
HOLZER: Thank you. 
 
DELORIA: Jimmy, anything else for us? 
 
DOUGAN: I’m all set unless you have any questions. 
 
WINEMILLER: While we are on the rockslide, JoePete, do you have any concerns about the rocks 
up through the Cascades in Keene? 
 
WILSON:  Well, they addressed it a few years ago in the last big construction project.  I think it 
might be modeled for what Roy is looking at; they blasted, they regraded the slope and removed 
a lot of rocks so that seemed to be effective.  It’s probably been about five or seven years since 
they did that so they do have precedent dealing with similar settings, similar issues. 
 
HOLZER:  The issue in this location though, I don’t think blasting because of the way it goes 
straight up will be an option.  I think what they are going to have to do is have to look at putting 
up some kind of cage barrier that would cage any debris going into the road.  Right now all there 
is guiderails and the size of the stones are popping right over the guardrails and there literally is 
no room in that area that I’m talking about. 
 
WINEMILLER:  Right, it’s very narrow.  Thank you. 
 
DELORIA:  Alice, Soil and Water. 
 
HALLORAN:  Good morning.  I don’t have anything to add to my report but if you have questions 
let me know and if you have any hydro seeding in your towns have your highway departments 
give me a call.  Any questions?  Alright, thanks. 
 
DELORIA:  Thank you.  Okay, is there anything else to come before this committee?  If not, we 
stand adjourned. 
 
 As there was no further discussion to come before this DPW committee it was adjourned 
at 9:45 a.m. 
 
Respectfully submitted, 
 
 
 
Judith Garrison, Clerk 
Board of Supervisors 
 
 


